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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF KENTUCKWWH Dﬁtrm of Rentucky

NORTHERN DIVISION ILED
COVINGTON
JUN 14 2007
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AT COVINGTON
LESLIE G WHIThER
: GLERK U'S DISTRICT COURT
V. . ’ INDICTMENT NO. 0 )-39-(uaR

WILLIAM J. GALLION,
SHIRLEY A. CUNNINGHAM, JR., and
MELBOURNE MILLS, JR.

* % & & %

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:

COUNT 1
18 U.S.C. § 1343
18 U.S.C. § 1349

1. On or about May 1, 2001, and continuing through on or about June 2005, in

Boone and other counties, in the Eastern District of Kentucky, and elsewhere,

WILLIAM J. GALLION,
SHIRLEY A. CUNNINGHAM, JR., and
MELBOURNE MILLS, JR.

did conspire with each other, and others, to knowingly commit wire fraud in violation of

18 U.S.C. § 1343, more specifically they devised and intended to devise a scheme and

artifice to defraud; and to obtain money by means of false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations or promises; and did transmit and cause to be transmitted by means of

wire communication in interstate commerce, writings, signs, signals, pictures and sounds
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for the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice.

INTRODUCTION

2. At all times relevant to the information set out in this Indictment, WILLIAM J.
GALLION, SHIRLEY A. CUNNINGHAM, JR. and MELBOURNE MILLS, JR.
(hereafter GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS) were attorneys licensed to
practice law in ;(he Commonwealth of Kentucky.

3. At all times relevant to the information set out in this Indictment, GALLION
and CUNNINGHAM maintained law offices in Lexington, Kentucky, and MXLLS
maintained law offices in Versailles and Lexington, Kentucky.

4. In the late 1990s, civil actions began nationwide concerning the use of diet
drugs, commonly referred to as Fen-Phen, and injuries sustained by users of the drugs.
GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, solicited and undertook representation of
many individuals who had used these diet drugs and were harmed. GALLION,

CUNNINGHAM and MILLS entered into contractual fee agreements with each of their
clients,. MILLS contractually agreed to a fee of no more than 30% of his clients’ net

recovery after expenses were paid, GALLION agreed to a fee of 33% of the total sum
recovered by his clients before expenses were paid; and CUNNINGHAM agreed to a fee
of 33 and 1/3% of the total sum recovered by his clients before expenses were paid.

5. GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS entered into joint representation

agreements among themselves and other attorneys for the representation of their clients
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allegedly harmed by the use of the drug, Fen-Phen.

| 6. In July 1998, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, filed on behalf of
their clients a civil action, Boone County Kentucky Circuit Court Civil Action Number
98-CI-795. The case eventually included approximately 440 plaintiffs. The named
defendants in the action were ‘American Home Products (AHP), Banatrics, Inc., and Dr.
Rex Duff. The -action was certified as a class action by the Boone Circuit Court on May
5, 1999,

7. Boone County Kentucky Circuit Court Civil Action Number 98-CI-795 was
ultimately settled through mediation on May 1, 2001. On that date, AHP settled the case
for the 440 plaintiffs for $200,000,000 payable to the plaintiffs based upon
representations made by the plaintiffs attorneys and others working on their behalf. An
attachment to the agreement specified the monetary amount allotted to each plaintiff

based on the degree of injury suffered by each plaintiff.
8. On May 16, 2001, the Boone Circuit Court entered an order decertifying the

class and dismissing the action.
M R ME CONSPIRACY
In Boone County Kentucky Circuit Court Civil Action Number 98-CI-795,
GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS failed to take any steps to comply with the

requirements of law dealing with class actions. GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and

MILLS instituted and terminated the class action without any notice to the members of
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the class. Further they sought no orders from the court giving notice to the class members
of the propriety of both the settlement figure and the amount of attorneys” fees to be

awarded.

9. After the settlement, they failed to disclose to any plaintiff the total amount of
the settlement, the amount allbtted to each plaintiff, or the information regarding each
plaintiff’s injuries which was used by AHP to fund the settlement. Thereaiter,
GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS ignored both mandatory court rules and
their contractual fee agreements with each plaintiff, fraudulently convinced each plaintiff
to accept a settlement amount without full disclosure of the facts, and defrauded the
plaintiffs of approximately $65,000,000, money which the attorneys took over and
beyond that to which they were entitled.

10. GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, and their representatives, failed
to disclose to the plaintiffs, in Boone County Kentucky Circuit Court Civil Action

Number 98-CI-795, that a mediation was scheduled, or that a settlement was

contemplated. On or about June 2001, the plaintiffs were contacted by representatives of
GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, and advised to come to the PNC Bank
Building in Lexington, Kentucky, to meet regarding the case. At that meeting, the

plaintiffs were advised for the first time that a settlement had occurred.
11. At the direction of GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, the

representatives refused to disclose the total amount of the settlement to the plaintiffs,



06/14/2007 13:34 FAX 858 B55 3212 U.S. ATTORNEY COVINGTON Boovso24

falsely asserting a claim of confidentiality.

12. GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS deliberately did not disclose
through their representatives the presumptive settlement amount which had been
determined by GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS for each plaintiff and which

had been relied upon by AHP in funding the settlement.

13. At the direction of GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, the
representatives negotiated an individual settlement amount with each plaintiff and
attempted to convince each plaintiff to accept an amount far below the presumptive
settlement amount established to fund the settlement. Negotiating against their respective
clients’ best interests, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS instructed their
respective representatives to require each plaintiff to execute a release based upon the
individually agreed to settlement amount, Thereafter, plaintiffs were either given a cﬁeck
at that meeting or required to return shortly thereafter to receive their check.

14. At the direction of GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, the plaintiffs

were deliberately not given a copy of any of the documents they signed, including the

release. Further, some of them were falsely told they could be imprisoned if they revealed
the amount of their settlernent.

15. The sum of $200,000,000 was paid by AHP in increments between June 19,
2001 and November 15 , 2001, and wired into an escrow account (hereinafter referred to

as the Escrow Account) held in the name of CUNNINGHAM, at Bank One, in
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Lexington, Kentucky, on behalf of the plaintiffs. Between on or about June 2001 and
August 2001, checks were issued to the plaintiffs from this account. The majority of the
checks were stamped “Final Settlement”. According to the contractual fee agreements
between the plaintiffs and their attorneys, out of the $200,000,000 settlement, the
plaintiffs should have received a total of approximately two thirds of the settlement

amount, after legitimate expenses, and the attorneys should have been entitled to the
remainder. Instead, the plaintiffs initially received a total of approximately $45,460,250.
Of the remaining amount of approximately $154,989,750; $7,500,000 was set as side as
required by the settlement agreement, and the remainder went to the benefit of the
attorneys.

16, The first increment of $150,000,000 was wired by AHP into the Escrow
Account on June 19, 2001. That day, approximately $45,000,000 was transferred from
the Escrow Account into the personal and investment accounts of GALLION,
approximately $38,000,000 was transferred into the investment accounts of
CUNNINGHAM, and approximately $9,000,000 went to a personal account of MILLS.

17. By the end of November 2001, GALLION had taken a total of approximately
$£54,000,000 of the $206,000,000 settlement, CUNNINGHAM had taken a total of
approximately $48,000,000 of the $200,000,000 scttlement, and MILLS had taken a total
of approximately $17,000,000 of the $200,000,000 settlement. The remaining money

from the $200,000,000 settlement after the payment to the plaintiffs and their counse],



0B8/14/2007 13:35 FAX 858 6855 3212 U.S. ATTORNEY COVINGTON 4 003/024

was used to pay others of whom the plaintiffs were unaware in the approximate total

amount of $30,712,118.

18. On February 11, 2002, the Kentucky Bar Association Inquiry Commission
conducted a hearing investigating the manner in which the civil settlement was handled.
GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS were not present at the hearing, but were
represented by counsel. At that hearing, the Inquiry Commission applied for a subpoena

for the Escrow Account at Bank One in Kentucky.

19. On the same day as the application for the subpoena was made, five wire
transfers totaling approximately $59,225,627.13 were made from personal investment
accounts of GALLION and CUNNINGHAM, into a First Union Bank account in
Florida held jointly in the name of GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS,
(hereinafter referred to as the Defined Term Account). This account had been opened on

or about June 2001.

20, Within approximately six weeks of the issuance of the subpoena for the

Escrow Account at Bank One of Kentucky, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS
elected to make a second distribution of the proceeds to plaintiffs, still below the amount

of what should have been paid to them.
21. Teo process the second distribution, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and

MILLS directed their representatives to call the plaintiffs and ask the plaintiffs to come

into the PNC Bank office without telling them they were to receive a second check. When
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each client arrived, a letter was read to them and they were given a check. The clients
were required to sign the letter and a release in order to receive their second distribution
check. The letter alleged that monies had been withheld and placed in escrow to provide

for future claims, and that the Court had agreed that not all the monies had to be held and
were going to be disbursed. The letter indicated that additional compensation was very

unusual, The letter, in part, read:

If there are some sums left over, we would like to donate the
remainder to a charity and know you would join us in this worthy and
admirable act. The Court has indicated that it also thinks a donation would
be appropriate and the Court could approve this. The issue of a charitable
donation is premature as we do not know whether there will be any sums
remaining to do this, but we wanted to inform you of our thoughts.
Although we believe you would concur, if you have a strong objection to
this idea of a donation to a charity, please let us know.

22. On March 27, 2002, GALLION requested that approximately $26,000,362.04
be transferred from the Defined Term Account in Florida into a second First Union
Account in Florida, referred to as the Kentucky Diet Drug Disbursement Account. This
account was utilized to issue the second distribution checks to the plaintiffs. The total
amount of the second distribution to the plaintiffs was approximately $28,624,701 61,

23. Despite the fact that the civil court had decertified the action and dismissed
the case, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, without notice to any party, sought
additional orders from the Court approving their fees and disbursement of the settlement

of the money, after the Inquiry Commussion began to investigate the case. GALLION,

CUNNINGHAM and MILLS purposely failed to advise the court they had contractual
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fee agreements with each plaintiff by which they were bound and that they had previously
transferred the remaining money into their own personal investment accounts.

They further requested that the court approve the creation of a charitable trust, later
named “The Kentucky Fund For Healthy Living”, to be funded with $20,000,000 of the
settlementproceeds. In so doing, they falsely reported to the court that all the plaintiffs
had approved ﬁ;e charitable trust, fully understanding that twenty million dollars would

be used to create it. Thereafter, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS were

appointed to the board of the trust and became paid directors. Between approximately
March 2003 and June 2005, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS ea§h received
approximately $149,800 in directors fees.

24. According to the contractual fee agreements between the plaintiffs and
GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS, the plamtiffs should have received a total of
approximately two thirds of the settlement amount after a deduction for legitimate
expenses. Of the total amount of the $200,000,000, the plaintiffs were paid
approximately $74,194,577, slightly more than a third of the overall settlement.

25. By the end of January 2003, GALLION had taken a total of approximately
$30,480,815 in attorneys fees, CUNNINGHAM had taken a total of approximately
$20,707,747 in attorneys fees, and MILLS had taken a total of approximately

$23,623,033 in attomeys fees. Additional money in the amount of approximately

330,712,118 was used to pay others of whom the plaintiffs were unaware.
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26. By the end of 2004, GALLION, CUNNINGHAM and MILLS had
transferred from the Defined Term Account at First Union Bank in Florida, $20,476.846
to a series of accounts in the name of the Kentucky Fund For Healthy Living.

OVERT ACTS IN FURTHERANCE OF THE CONSPIRACY

27, “In furtherance of this conspiracy and to effect the abject thereof, there was
committed by at least one of the co-conspirators, in the Eastern District of Kentucky and
elsewhere, at least one of the following overt acts, among others;

28. Upon transfer of $150,000,000 in settlement funds from AHP on June 19,
2001, into the Escrow Account at Bank One in Lexington, Kentucky, the following
monies were wired or caused to be wired as follows:

29. On June 19, 2001, CUNNINGHAM wired or caused to be wired a total of
approximately $26,162,630 from the Escrow Account at Bank One, in Lexington,
Kentucky, to a personal account of GALLION’S at First Union Bank in Florida.

30. On June 19, 2001, CUNNINGHAM wired or caused to be wired a total of
approximately $12,040,933 from the Escrow Account to a Vanguard Investment Account

held by GALLION in Pennsylvania.

31. On June 19, 2001, CUNNINGHAM wired or caused to be wired a total of

approximately $7,018,949 from the Escrow Account to a personal account held by

GALLION at PNC Bank in Cincinnati, Ohio.

32. On June 19,2001, CUNNINGHAM wired or caused to be wired a total of

10



